



# MANUAL paraDIGMA-Online

paraDIGMA groep B.V. Fultonbaan 56-60 3439 NE Nieuwegein

T 088 - 031 32 00 F 088 - 031 32 99 servicedesk@dearbodienst.nl www.paradigma.nl



# PARA**DIGMA** GROEP

# CONTENTS

SUMMARY
1. LOGGING IN TO paraDIGMA-Online
1.1 the Google authenticator app 4
1.2 the welCOME Email
1.3 Activating your account4
1.4 SETTING THE Google authenticator app5
2. The Dashboard
3. Absence and RECOVERY NOTIFIER User role
3.1 Reporting Absence 6
3.2 Reporting (partial) recovery
4. Supervisor User role
4.1 searching employees
4.2 Open files
4.3 creating a Pregnancy protocol
4.4 changing the Pregnancy protocol10
4.5 other reports
4.6 adding and changing a note12
4.7 creating a note in the Cockpit12
4.8 creating a note from the dossier14
4.9 uploading a Document
4.10 UWV reports
4.11 reporting an ill employee as retired17
4.12 SETTING THE Absence assistant
5. P&O User role
5.1 changing personal details
5.2 ADDING OR CHANGING THE Employment contract
5.3 adding an Employee
5.5 ADDING/CHANGING AN Organisation structurE21
5.6. LINKING A User account
6. Administrator User role
6.1 creating a User account
6.2 Communication and USER details24
6.3 Authorisation structure
7. The Reporting portal
7.1 Navigating to the reporting channel



report selection	26
Employer selection	26
Filters	27
Saving filters	27
Statistics report	28
Printing - Archiving	28
TIONS or mORE information?	29
	report selection Employer selection Filters Saving filters Statistics report Printing - Archiving TIONS or mORE information?



# SUMMARY

In order to properly and securely safeguard the absenteeism records of your employee being absent, as well as all steps in the WvP (Eligibility for Permanent Invalidity Benefit (Restrictions) Act), your health & safety service provider, the Health & Safety Service, will operate within in the absence registration-, and communication system paraDIGMA-Online. In addition to dossier compilation, also the communication between you and your Employment and Health Advisor will take place here. It depends to which user role you have been assigned. The manual is subdivided into in user roles and their required functionalities. Which chapters are relevant to you?

1: Absence and recovery notifier:	chapter 1 to 3
2: Supervisor/ Regional manager:	chapter 1 to 4
3: P&O:	chapter 1 to 5
4: Administrator:	entire manual

This manual provides an explanation about the system and helps you to optimally manage your employees' details.

In order to help you on your way, we ask you to carefully read this manual before logging in. On our website, you will find instruction videos about the functionalities of paraDIGMA-Online. Click on link below:

https://www.dearbodienst.nl/kennis-en-inspiratie/instructie-paradigma-online

Do you still have questions after reading the manual and watching the instruction videos? Then feel free to contact: <a href="mailto:servicedesk@dearbodienst.nl">servicedesk@dearbodienst.nl</a>



# **1. LOGGING IN TO PARADIGMA-ONLINE**

# 1.1 THE GOOGLE AUTHENTICATOR APP



Before logging in, install the <u>Google</u> Authenticator App on your mobile phone, using the App store or Play store.

# 1.2 THE WELCOME EMAIL

Your employer or Health & Safety Service has created an account for you, regarding which you have received a welcome email.

Welkom bij Paradigma-Online
paraDIGMA groep B.V. <noreply@paradigma-online.nl> Aan</noreply@paradigma-online.nl>
Handleiding Paradigma-Online voor leidinggevenden.pdf 412 KB
Hierbij ontvangt u uw gebruikersnaam voor Paradigma-Online, het verzuimregistratie- en communicatiesyste
Uw gebruikersnaam is: T_Test
Klik op onderstaande button om uw wachtwoord aan te maken. LET OP! Deze link is slechts 24 uur actief.
Klik hier om een wachtwoord in te stellen
Wanneer het wachtwoord is aangemaakt, kunt u voortaan deze link <u>https://loqin.paradigma-online.nl/auth/loqin</u> get

Please note: it's possible that it ended up in the SPAM box. Did you not receive the email? Then contact your employer or Health & Safety Service.

### **1.3 ACTIVATING YOUR ACCOUNT**

Clicking the red button in the welcome email, stating: 'Klik hier om een wachtwoord in te stellen', will automatically open paraDIGMA-Online. This is where you enter your business email address and twice the password you desire. Click on 'save'. Subsequently, you will be redirected to a page where you can enter your user name and the password created.

Important: you can find your user name in the email you received.



# PARA**DIGMA** GROEP

PARADIGMA online	Log in bij Paradigma- Online. <sup>Vul</sup> uw gebruikersnaam en wachtwoord in.	
	Gebruikersnaam	Have you on "Wacht
	Wachtwoord	Subseque email addr and you w

Have you lost your log in details? Click on "Wachtwoord vergeten?". Subsequently enter your business email address in the user name field and you will receive a new login email.

# 1.4 SETTING THE GOOGLE AUTHENTICATOR APP

After logging in, you must set the obligatory two-step authentication. Follow steps below:



- In the Google Authenticator app click on: 'Add account' or on the plus sign.
- Then click on 'Scan a barcode' and scan the QR-code.
- Then click on the green button 'Actieveren'.
- In the pop-up screen, enter the verification code that is on your Google Authenticator app and then click on 'ja'.

You are logged in to paraDIGMA-Online. Clicking on the employers portal will direct you to your employee details.



# 2. THE DASHBOARD

Once you are logged in to paraDIGMA-Online, you will find the dashboard. On the dashboard you can find various brief overviews for which you were authorised.

PARADIGMA online	Dashboard		6 🖲 🏽 🖨 🖪
Demo Humaris			
Dashboard Organisational structure 2 Medewerkers uit dienst	10.11% / 10.11% ABSENCE RATE LAST MONTH	0.13 / 0 FREQUENCY OF BOX LEWE LAST MONTH 0 / 0 DAYS WEMAGE DEMONSION OF ASSENTEESISM DUE TO LAST MONTH	100 / 100 ACTIVE EMPLOYEES LAST MONTH
Medewerkers	Open files	Absence percentage of the past 2 weeks	Latest news
Openstaande dossiers  Gesloten dossiers	Grootendorst, T m 03-03-2021 - Verzuim	10% No Per day	No news items found.
Openataande taken	Vendrig, E 14-12-2020 - Preventief	14%	Open tasks
	van Beers, R.B. m 09-12-2020 - Zwangerschap	10% • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Aangifte langdurige ziekte UWV - 42e week Vreeke, L
	Hendriksen, B. main 29-11-2020 - Verzuim	8%- 0%-	Deelherstel Bayrak, W
	Ubaghs, K m 01-11-2020 - Verzuim	45	Registreren zwangerschaps-/bevallingsver Hoiting S
	Received signals	2%	Registreren zwangerschaps-/bevallingsver Kruithof, B
Search • • • 3	Cuijpers, V 🗶 🎕 🗙	23-02 24-02 25-02 28-02 27-02 28-02 01-03 02-03 03-03 04-03 05-03 06-03 07-03 08-03	Evalueren en bijstellen Robben, S
Recently viewed	16-12-2020 17:32:23	Last file actions	
Concepts	Aangemaakt document Evalueren en Bijstellen	to Develop from d	Frequently asked questions
+ Report absence	Cuijpers, V (2) Sa X	NO THE WORK FOUND.	
Report recovery 4	16-12-2020 17:31:43		
Y Pregnancy leave	Aangemaakt document (Eerstejaars)evaluatie		
D Other notifications	Verzuim		

1. The logo	Click here and navigate to the dashboard
2. The navigation section	This is where you can find lists of employees, dossiers and more
3. The search function	Search by last name, birth date, personnel number or open files here, by clicking on the arrow
4. Registering reports	The number of buttons found here depend on your user role
5. Absence percentage	Here you can find the absence percentage of the employees for which you have been authorised
6. Personal preferences	Here you can set your personal preferences

# 3. ABSENCE AND RECOVERY NOTIFIER USER ROLE

Have you been assigned the role of absence-, and recovery notifier, then your authorisations are limited to reporting absence and recovery of your employees concerning whom you were authorised.

# 3.1 REPORTING ABSENCE



In the bottom left of your screen, you will find the buttons for absence and recovery report for your employee. To enter an absence registration, click on the button 'report absence' in the bottom left.



Subsequently, you will see the entry field to report the absence in.

Se	arch employee				
[	llaan ata 2 a maa dhaantaa				
-	lease enter 3 or more characters				
	rcentage sick	%	40	Hours	
	Accident?				
	Nursing address?				

In the yellow field 'search employee', you enter the first three of the employee's last name. Then click on the relevant employee. Subsequently, you fill in all the mandatory yellow fields. Does this concern a safety net related notification? Then tick the box 'safety net'.

Then you click the button . The absence notification is now registered.

# 3.2 REPORTING (PARTIAL) RECOVERY

There are different ways in which you can report the (partial) recovery of an employee:

**1.** By clicking the button 'report recovery' in the bottom left, you can process the recovery notification in the entry screen.

Report recovery		
Search employee		
		*
1		
Please enter 3 or more characters		
Reason of recovery		
Volledig hersteld		X *
Percentage recovered	Hour	
100	% 40	Hours
Safety net?		
✓ Close file		

If you wish to process a partial recovery notification, you can adjust the percentage at 'percentage recovered'.

2. Another way to enter a (partial) recovery notification is by clicking on the option 'add course of absence' in the absenteeism records of the employee, in the tab course of absence.



File overview	Data	Tasks	File	Absence course			Q Search		Add absence incident
29-11-2020 Absence (1402358) Duur: 95 degen	Absence		Reason	Start date	End date	Number of weeks	Added by	Notification date	
	100.00% Ziek			29-11-2020			Nijp, M	29-11-2020	

This will direct you to the same entry screen, where you can enter the details. After clicking on Save, the (partial) recovery notification will be processed. In case of a full recovery notification, the dossier will be closed. The absenteeism records will no longer be visible in open files.

# 4. SUPERVISOR USER ROLE

If you are a supervisor, then, in addition to absence and recovery notification, you will have more functionalities at your disposal, such as creating a pregnancy protocol or other reports and creating and viewing notes and documents.

# **4.1 SEARCHING EMPLOYEES**

After logging in, you will find the navigation section to the left of the dashboard. By clicking on the 'Medewerkers' button, you will see an overview of all the employees you were authorised for and who have an active employment contract.

Demo Humaris					PDF export Excel export	Print Select columns Select filters
Dashboard	Q Search					
Organisational structure						
Medewerkers uit dienst	Date of birth	Employee	Employee number	Organisational unit	Start date of employment	End date of employment
Medewerkers	21-08-1978	van Aach, Y	23	RPA - Keuken	19-02-2002	
Openstaande dossiers	09-11-1970	de Baas, A.	999	Management	01-01-2000	
Gesloten dossiers	17-02-1975	Bayrak, W	19	RPR - Bediening	01-01-2005	
Openstaande taken	16-04-1966	Beck, G	55	RPA - Bediening	01-01-2005	

In the search field you can search by last name, birth date or personnel number. You will see a list with search results. Clicking on the last name of the employee will open the employee dossier.

# 4.2 OPEN FILES

Dashboard
Organisational structure
Medewerkers uit dienst
Medewerkers
Openstaande dossiers
Gesloten dossiers
Openstaande taken

The button 'Openstaande dossiers' will give you an overview of all employees who are currently in absenteeism.

You can use the search field to search by last name, birth date or personnel number. You will see a list of search results. Clicking on the employee's last name will open the employee's dossier.

Subsequently you click on *for the absenteeism records present.* 



<u>۽</u>	Jeted period: 14 weken (13%)											Ren	naining period 9	90 weken (87%)   🎮
Þ	File overview	Data Ta:	sks	File Abser	nce course							20	C	0
••	29-11-2020 Absence (1402358) Duur: 98 degen	Notities						00	Algemene documenten					000
٩		Title Test vanuit openstaande taak	Concept	Type Notitie voor iedereen (WN+WG)	Kind	29-11- 2020	User Applicatiebeheer Paradigma, A	*	Title Concept	Туре	Kind	Date	User	
୍ଷର ପ		Test notitie voor iedereen	No	Notitie voor iedereen (WN+WG)	Notes	29-11- 2020	Applicatiebeheer Paradigma, A.							
								Ŧ						Ŧ

# 4.3 CREATING A PREGNANCY PROTOCOL

Recently viewed
Concepts
+ Report absence
✓ Report recovery
Y Pregnancy leave
🔲 Other notifications

In case an employee is pregnant, this must be reported to the UWV. Entering the pregnancy leave will enable the Health & Safety Service to inform the UWV.

Click on the button 'pregnancy leave' in the bottom left.

Entry screen below will appear. All the yellow fields are mandatory fields and must be filled in. At '*Search for employee*', you enter the first 3 letters of the employee's last name.

Search for employee	
	,
Expected day of child birth	
Multiple birth?	
Duration of leave	
0 4 Weeks	
5 Weeks	
6 Weeks	
Own choice	
Desired start date of leave	

Important; you can only report female employees pregnant!

After entering all the details, you click on Save. The pregnancy protocol has now been created and can be found in the employee's dossier overview.



# 4.4 CHANGING THE PREGNANCY PROTOCOL

Should your employee take her leave beforehand or in the event that other details have changed, then you can edit this by clicking on the pregnancy protocol and go to tab '*Date*'.

₽≣	File overview	Data	Tasks F	File Leave course			Q. Search				
	09-12-2020 Maternity leave (1495755) Duur: 3720 dagan	File type: Maternity le	eave			Protocol Pregnancy		Ŧ			
••	01-10-2018 Frequent absence (26278) Duur: 800 dagen	File status	atus								
٩	03-09-2018 09-12-2020 (Completed) Absence (25276) Duur: 3618 degen	Open Company doct	jpen × v mpany doctor								
0	02-02-2018 22-10-2018 (Completed) Absence	No compar Start date of fi	ly doctor	Notification date	End date of file	File number		× *			
4	(2027+) Dour: 39 dagan	09-12-202	1	09-12-2020	End date of file	1493753					

Important: if the Health & Safety Service sees to your UWV reports, you must communicate any changes concerning the leave to servicedesk@dearbodienst.nl. They will inform the UWV of the changes.

# 4.5 OTHER REPORTS

In order to create a preventive dossier, additional parental leave, adoption or organ donation, you click on 'Other notifications'.



The screen below will appear.

<b>%</b>	Preventive						
	Organ donation						
Ť	Adoption						
Overige dossiers							
	Birth leave						

If you wish to create a preventive dossier, then click on '*preventive*'. In screen below, you enter the yellow (mandatory) fields. The date can be adjusted.



*

Clicking on 'save' will create the dossier. The employee dossier will be opened automatically and you will find your preventive dossier in the dossier overview.

Important: the preventive dossier is accessible only to you as an employer. If you wish to share this dossier with the Health & Safety Service, you can change the accessibility under the tab 'Date'.

<b>₽</b> ≣	File overview	Data Tasks File Absence course	Q Search
	14-12-2020 Preventive	File type:	Protocol
_	(1536652) Duur: 85 degen	Preventive	• Preventive × •
<b>%</b>	29-08-2020 14-12-2020 (Completed)	File status	
	(1283557) Duur: 107 degen	Open	X 🔻
٢	29-08-2020 Absence (1201518) Duur, 192 decen	Company doctor	
	02-07-2020	No company doctor	X ¥
~	14-07-2020 (Completed) Absence	Safety net	
Q	(1201516) Duur: 12 dagen	N.v.t.	
	01-06-2020 28-08-2020 (Completed)	Start date of file Notification date Expected absence duration (in	on (in days) End date of file File number
	Absence (1194138) Duur: 3 degen	14-12-2020 1	End date of file 1536652
	16-05-2019 31-12-2019 (Completed) Preventive	Lopende afspraken en werkzaarnheden	
	(96016) Duur: 229 dagen		
			h
		Visible for	
		Visible for occupational health service and employer	× ×
		Visible for occupational health service and employer	
		Visible for arbo	
		Visble for employer	

To create additional parental leave, organ donation or adoption, you click on the desired protocol and fill in the yellow (mandatory) fields.



### 4.6 ADDING AND CHANGING A NOTE

In the absenteeism records, under the tab 'File', you can create a note in two different ways:

1. Via the 'Cockpit'

	<b>O</b>				0								0
	<ul> <li>Completed period: 1 weken (1%)</li> </ul>								4		Re	maining period 1	03 weken (99%)   🎮
	File overview	Data Tasks	File Absence o	ourse								•	•
••	23-10-2018 Absence (24514) Duris 003 doors	Notifies				00	Algemene docume	nten					000
		Title Con	cept Type	Kind D	ate User		Title	Concept	Туре	Kind	Date	User	
٩		Contact met No No	Notitie van werkgever (WG)	Notes 15-0 2019	5- Priester, T	*	Upload	No	Upload van werkgever (WG)	Upload	16-05- 2019	Priester, T	1

2. Via 'Create a note'

		0						0	
•=	Completed period:	: 1 weken (1%)							
	File overvi	iew	Data	Tasks	File	Absence course			
	23-10-2018 Absence (26316)	Duur: 903 degen	Notities						00
		-	Title	Concept	Туре	Kind	Date	User	
٩			Contact met medewerker	No	Notitie van werk	gever (WG) Notes	15-05- 2019	Priester, T	
٢									
Q									
									*

# 4.7 CREATING A NOTE IN THE COCKPIT

The cockpit is the communication page that contains all notes and documents of your employees being absent. It is used as a means of communication between you and the Health & Safety Service. You can also post notes and documents yourself here.

You will be directed to the 'cockpit' by clicking the icon in the top right, in the absenteeism records of your employee.



In the cockpit you can choose from different tabs. Each tab provides several options. The cockpit opens as a note.



On the left hand side of the screen, you click on '*Note type*' and select the option '*Note from employer*'. At '*File section*' you select the option '*Notes*' and at '*Title*' you briefly indicate the note's topic. You can enter your message in the centre. Once you are finished, you select the 'save' button at the bottom of the screen.

# Important: as an employer you are not permitted to note **any medical terms**! Use the alternative terms instead.

On the right hand side you can find a list of all notes in chronological order, so you can determine what has been entered in the dossier

Cockpit Note				Layout 2 V						• •
Note type	File section	•	😡 Broncode 🐰 ि 🛱 🛱	* *		Type		Kind		Ŷ
Note template	Date created		温 記   非 走   ୨୨   監 量 通 Lettertype -   Lettergr   B	$\equiv   = = =   @ @   \Omega $ $I = I_x   = = =$	@ X	Upload	<u> </u>	Select all	/ 0	
Title	sectors					Pier energies - 00000000000000000000000000000000000				
Employee information	File information					Contact met medewerker Date created : 15-05-2019 13-55-13 Date created : 03-12-2019 13-05-33 Created by: Priester, T			10	
Loman, S Date of birth 31-10-1975	Employment Type of employment Onbepaalde tijd	*				Type : Notitie van werkgever (WG) Dit is een notitie				
Gender Male Address Opperstehei 61 Postal code 5508 TP	Hours per week 32.00 Employee number 65 Job title Onbekend					L				
Place of residence Veldhoven Email address EsadLoman@einrot.com Phone sumber	Employer Demo Humaris Organisational unit RPA - Bediening									
Mobile phone number 06-14194307					4					
Contact persons :		Ŧ		Print Save Save a	and close					



### 4.8 CREATING A NOTE FROM THE DOSSIER

By clicking on the brown file folder '*File*' , you will be directed to the tab '*File*'. To add a note, click on the plus icon. The entry screen as mentioned in chapter 4.7 will also appear here.

			0						0	
X	Ē	Completed peri	iod: 1 weken (1%)							
	L	File over	rview	Data	Tasks	File Absence	course			<b>N</b>
	8	23-10-2018 Absence (26316)	Duur: 903 degen	Notities						00
				Title	Concept	Туре	Kind	Date	User	
	9			Contact met medewerker	No	Notitie van werkgever (WG)	Notes	15-05- 2019	Priester, T	*
	Q									
										~

# 4.9 UPLOADING A DOCUMENT

To upload a document, you must open the cockpit or click on the plus icon <sup>o</sup> of the desired document. The cockpit will be opened.

Cockpit №	ote Document	Plain task UWV notification Layout 3 Y
Upload type 0	File section	Notes of Control of Co
Upload van werk × ×	Select 🔺	
Date created		Linipad file
13-04-2021	Algemene documenten	
	Uitnodigingen	
Title	UWV uploads en Terugkoppelingen BA	
	UWV Upload	
Occupational health service c	an edit content	L

The type of upload is set to General (WG+WN). WG stands for employer and WN stands for employee. At '*File section*', you indicate which type of document you wish to upload. If you have set all the yellow mandatory fields, you click on '*Upload file*'. Select the desired document(s) and click on Open. You will now see your selected document(s) again. Subsequently, you click on '*save and close*'. You will find your document(s) under '*Algemene documenten*'.



Algemene d	ocumenten				0	000
Titel	Concept	Туре	Soort	Datum	Gebruiker	
						*
						-

# 4.10 UWV REPORTS

If your employee has been absent for a prolonged period of time, you are required to create a UWV document. In the employee dossier, you click on the tab '*File*'. You can create a UWV document from the cockpit or under '*UWV uploads en terugkoppelingen BA*'.

			<u>م</u>										
5	File overview	Data Tas	ks File A	bsence course							æ	e (	•
•	23-10-2018 Absence (26316) Duur: 903 depen	Notities				Ø 🗢	Algemene docume	nten					000
		Title	Concept Type	Kind E	Date User		Title	Concept	Туре	Kind	Date	User	
		Contact met medewerker	No Notitie van werkge	ver (WG) Notes 15-0 201	05- Priester, T 19	<b>^</b>	Upload	No I	Upload van werkgever (WG)	Upload	16-05- 2019	Priester, T	* ^
٩													
Q													
						-							
		Litpodigingen				000	IWV unloads on Te	erunkonnelinner	RA				200
		Title	Concept Type	Kind [	Date User	000	Title	Concept	Type	Kind	Date	User	
									.,,				*
						-							-
													_

		ь.	
٠.	4	٠	
	-	-	

From the Cockpit, you click on UWV notification. In the subsequent screen, you can choose, for instance, 'Action plan'. The UWV form will be opened and you can enter all the details in it. After filling the fields, you click on '*save and generate*'.

You can retrieve the UWV document under '*UWV Uploads en Terugkoppelingen BA*'. Also from here, you can create a UWV document. To do this, click on the icon '*create document*'.



UWV uploads en Terugkoppelingen BA						
Titel	Concept	Туре	Soort	Datum	Gebruiker	K



# 4.11 REPORTING AN ILL EMPLOYEE AS RETIRED

Reporting an ill employee as retired can be done in two different ways:

 Find the employee under '*Medewerkers*' in the navigation section. Click on the desired employee to open the employee dossier. Afterwards you click on the brown file folder '*Files*' and then you proceed to "Absence course". Click on the blue button '*Add absence incident*'.

<b>a</b> =		0				(	>			0
	<ul> <li>Completed period</li> </ul>	od: 1 weken (1%)								Remaining period 103 weken (99%)   🍽
5	File over	view	Data	Tasks File	Absence course				Q. Search	Add absence incident
•	23-10-2018 Absence (26316)	Duur: 903 degen	Absence	Reason	Start date	End date	Number of weeks	Added by		incation date
2			100.00% Ziek		23-10-2018			Heijnen - van Kaam, C.		23-10-2018

Absence incidents				×
Date				
Percentage recovered		Hours		
	%	40,00	Hours	
Reason				
Select				
Volledig hersteld				-
Ziek uit dienst				
Einde wachttijd				
Ingang AOW				
Overleden				
Ingang zwangerschapsver	lof			
Gedeeltelijk hersteld				 -

A '*Absence incidents*' screen will appear. Fill in the mandatory fields in this screen.

At percentage recovers, you fill in zero percent. At '*Reason*', you select '*Ziek uit dienst*'. After saving, the absence dossier will be completed.

Important: also the employment contract must be terminated manually. You must communicate this to your P&O department. They will be able to terminate the employment contract for you.

2. Or by clicking on the button



In 'Search employee', you enter the first three letters of the employee's last name. The desired employee will appear.



PARADIGMA	0
GROEP	

Search employee	
Beuving J   05-08-1998   38   Restaurant Putter Rotterdam - RPR - Keuken	٣
Recovery date	
13-04-2021	
Reason of recovery	
Volledig hersteld	X A
Volledig hersteld	*
Ziek uit dienst	
Einde wachttijd	
Ingang AOW	
Overleden	
Ingang zwangerschapsverlof	
Gedeehtelijk hersteld	-

At recovery date, I enter the date on which the ill employee should be reported retired.

When clicking on '*Reason of recovery*', a drop down menu will appear.

This is where you select 'retired during illness' and subsequently click on Save. You will find that the dossier will be completed automatically.

# 4.12 SETTING THE ABSENCE ASSISTANT

If you are absent during a certain period of time, it is necessary to communicate a replacement. As such, your regular tasks will be taken on. To do this, you can set your absence assistant.

In the top right, you click on the employee button. A drop down-menu will appear. Click on 'My account'.'



Now the screen below will appear. On the left hand side, you click on the button '*Afwezigheid*'. Subsequently, you click on the blue button '*Afwezigheid toevoegen*'.

Account data					• Afwezigheid toevoegen
Afwezigheid	Startdatum	↓≟ Einddatum	11 Vervanger	1 Reden Afwezig	41 4
Gekoppelde accounts			No data available in ta	ble	
Google authenticator	Showing 0 to 0 of 0 ent	tries			
U2F token					
Logboek					
Taakmelder					



Actief 🔲		
Startdatum		
Einddatum		
Reden afwezig		
Selecteer		•
Vervanger		
Selecteer		•
	Opslaan	C Annuleren

In this screen, you enter the period of your absence, the reason for your absence and the person who will be replacing you during this period. By selecting 'selecteert' under Vervanger, you will find a list of all available users you can choose from.

# Important: only users with a user role similar to yours will be displayed. For example; if you are a supervisor, then only supervisors will be displayed.

Once you have selected your absence assistant, you click on 'Opslaan'. You will now see your absence assistant appearing in your screen. If you wish to change your absence assistant, click on the pencil. If you wish to delete this person, then you click on the bin and the absence assistant will be removed.

								Afwezigheid toevoegen
Startdatum	11	Einddatum	11	Vervanger	11	Reden afwezig	11	tt
02-12-2020		30-12-2020		Test		Vakantie		<b>D</b>
1 tot 1 van 1 resultat	en							

# 5. P&O USER ROLE

In your role as P&O assistant, you have access to the absenteeism records that you have been authorised for. This where you have the opportunity to change absence and personal details, to add employees and employment contracts and to make adjustments in the organisation structure.

# 5.1 CHANGING PERSONAL DETAILS

By clicking on the employee card you will see all the personal details of the employee, e.g. address and employment contract details.



<b>₽</b>	Information Employments	Authorisations Emp	ployee file				Edit
-	Beuving, J Q	Employments		♂ 🔾	Address		♂ €
	🌢 Sabrina		Organisational unit	RPR - Keuken		Type of address	Visiting address
•	≡ 38		Hours per week	36.00		Street	Frans Halsstraat 99
Ê	ň		Employee number	38		Postal code	7482 XM
	<u>4</u> 05-08-1998		Indication payroll tax credit	Nee		Place	Haaksbergen
٩	0 06-99044042					Country	
	0			*			*

Click on the button 'edit' to change the personal details and/or address details. A screen will pop up in which you can adjust the desired details.

<b>.</b>	Information Employments	Authorisations	imployee file				Edit
-	Beuving, J Q	Employment	5	⊘∑	Address		♂ •
	🌢 Sabrina		Organisational unit	RPR - Keuken		Type of address	Visiting address
•	≡ 38		Hours per week	36.00		Street	Frans Halsstraat 99
Ê	*		Employee number	38		Postal code	7482 XM
_	<u>#</u> 05-08-1998		Indication payroll tax credit	Nee		Place	Haaksbergen
(2)	0 06-99044042					Country	
	0			*			-

In order to adjust the employment contract, you click on the pencil current employment contract.

# 5.2 ADDING OR CHANGING THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

# **8**≡

The employee card contains the tab 'employments'. By clicking on it, you will get an overview of active and terminated employment contracts.

In order to change the general employment contract details, you click on the pencil icon behind 'Dienstverband 1', on the right hand side. Here you can change the desired details and then click on Save.

Dienstverband 1						1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
Personeelsnummer:		23	UWV aansluitnummer:			
Anciënniteitsdatum:			UWV sector:			
UWV risicocode:			Leidinggevende:			
Indicatie loonheffingskorting:		Nee	Loonheffingsnummer:			
Reden einde dienstverband:			Wachtdagen:			
Organisatorische eenheid	Functie	Startdatum	Einddatum	Uren per week	FTE	0
RPA - Keuken		19-02-2002		40.00	1.00	Û

In case of a new contract, you can add a contract row within the present employment contract.



In the subsequent screen, you can fill in below mentioned details:

- Organisatorische eenheid • Under ORGANISATORISCHE EENHEID you can see where the employee should be placed. Fill in the first three characters of this Organisational unit (department) here.
- Employment contract type
- Functie (Job title)
- Start- en Einddatum (start and end date)



#### • Uren per week ((Standard) hours per week)

Subsequently, you click on 'save'. When adding a contract, the end date of the previous contract will be filled automatically.

Important: if an employee has been reported 'retired during illness' by the supervisor, also the contract must be terminated. Adding an end date to the contract can only be done by someone with a P&O or administrator role.

An employee can be working on the basis of several simultaneous employment contracts, for instance because the employee has multiple job titles. To add a new employment contract, click on the button:

Add employment The yellow fields 'organisational unit' and 'start date' must be filled in when adding a new employment contract.

When you have filled in all the details, you click on 'save'. Subsequently, you can find your created employment contract under 'employment contracts'.

**Note:** If the employee has a contract end date that is in the future, the employee will still be displayed in the list '*Employees*' until that particular date. After this end date, the employee will automatically be displayed in the list '*Retired employees*'.

# 5.3 ADDING AN EMPLOYEE

To add an employee, select the button '*Medewerkers*' in the navigation section. You will see all employees employed within your company. You will find the button 'add employee' in the top section.

	Demo Humaris					Add	l employee	PDF export	Excel export	Print	Select columns	Select filters 1
	Organisational structure	Q Search										
X	Medewerkers uit dienst				•							
	Medewerkers	Date of birth	Employee	Employee number	Organisational unit	1	Start date of en	ployment		End date	of employment	
	Openstaande dossiers	21-08-1978	van Asch, Y	23	RPA - Keuken		19-02-2002					
	Gesloten dossiers	09-11-1970	de Baas, A.	999	Management		01-01-2000					

Click on 'add employee'. An entry field will appear containing white and yellow sections. The yellow sections are mandatory. Fill in all the yellow fields. In case of an organisational unit, you enter the first three letters of the department where the employee will be working. A drop down menu will appear mentioning all the departments you can choose from. Once you have filled in all the yellow fields, you click on Save.

You can find your employee by entering the last name, birth date or personnel number in the search field. If the employee has an employment contract where the start date of the contract is in the future, the employee can be found under 'Retired employees'.

### 5.5 ADDING/CHANGING AN ORGANISATION STRUCTURE

In the navigation section you will find the button 'organisation structure'. This structure provides an overview of the way in which your company is organised of underlying divisions/departments.



By clicking on the components in the structure, the path will be displayed. To add a department, you click on the house icon, upon which the screen below will appear.



Name	Code
Name	Code
Organisational unit type	
Select	• •
Parent organisational unit	
	v
Start date	End date
Start date	End date

The yellow fields are mandatory fields. At the name, you fill in the name of the department or company. Under 'code' you enter a code that you wish to link to this business unit. You can add new employees by use of this code. At 'organisational unit type' you indicate whether this concerns a company or a department. If you select department, then you subsequently click on Save, after which you will find your department in the organisation structure.

If you select Company, then several fields will appear that need filling. Subsequently, you click on 'save'. Your company will now show in the organisation structure.

Important: If the Health & Safety Service sees to your UWV reports, it is also essential to fill in the UWV details.

#### 5.6. LINKING A USER ACCOUNT

If your job title has two separate accounts, it will be efficient to link your extra account to your main account. For example; you are an HR employee for two separate companies. As such, you will log in to paraDIGMA-Online once and via the button 'my account' you can navigate to your other company.

Click on the employee button in the top right. A drop down-menu will pop up. Click on 'My account'

	o 🗯 🗢 🔒	
>	You are signed Ilse_Demo Humaris - in as Ilse_Demo Humaris	*
*	Main account Humaris Beheerder - - uitgebreid	
٥	My account	
0	About Visma Verzuim	
۲	Logout	-

You will now see the screen below. This is where you select 'Gekoppelde accounts'.



	Initialan	Beenneem	
Account gegevens		Koepinaam	
Afwezigheid	Tussenvoegsel	Achternaam	
Gekoppelde accounts	Tussenvoegsel	Test	
	Geslacht	Functie	Rol
Google authenticator	Vrouw × *	Functie	Planner
U2F token	Naamgebruik	Tussenvoegsel partner	Achternaam partner
Logboek	Selecteer	Tussenvoegsel partner	Achternaam partner
Taakmelder	Kleurenblind		
	Handtekening (email)		

Gekoppelde account toevoegen

You click on the button to add your second account. In this screen you enter the details of your second account.

	Gekoppelde account toevoegen Mijn account 🚍 🚺 😩 🏢
Account gegevens Afwezigheid BIG registratie Gekoppelde accounts	Om een account te kunnen koppelen dient u de inloggegevens van dit account in te vullen.  Gebruikersnaam Test Wachtwoord Omgevingsnaam
Google authenticator U2F token	Bedrijf 2
	Opsiaan CAnnuleren

Fill in your user name in the top field. This user name can be found in the welcome email. In the second field, you fill in your preferred password. In the third field, the 'environment name, you enter the name that you wish to appear under the button 'my account'. Then click on 'opslaan' to save.

When clicking on the employee button again, your second account will appear. When clicking on this account, you will navigate to your second company.

# 6. ADMINISTRATOR USER ROLE

In your role as an administrator, you were given all authorisations in paraDIGMA-Online. One of those rights is the creation and editing of (new) user accounts.



# 6.1 CREATING A USER ACCOUNT

Once you are logged in to paraDIGMA-Online, you click on the cogwheel in the dashboard at the top right of the screen.

<b>a</b>	Users	Subsequently, you will see the settings screen.
ප	Users	Here you click on the button 'Users'
٢	Roles	in the system. The accounts could be either active or inactive.
ĥ	Overviews	If you wish to add a user, select the button:
	Agenda's	O Add user
U	Organisational unit types	An entry screen will appear with white and yellow fields. The yellow fields are mandatory fields.
<b>.</b>	Data import	
1	Data export	

# 6.2 COMMUNICATION AND USER DETAILS

- At communication, an email address and mobile number will be requested. Fill in the corporate details here.
- User name: you also enter the business email address here.
- Role: This is where you can use the scroll down menu to select the following options: (In case of multiple options, these will not be applicable)

P&O	<ul> <li>Has the opportunity to change the personal details, employment contracts and the illness-, pregnancy-, and recovery reports and any adjustments in the organisation structure.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Has access to all (absence) dossiers</li> </ul>

Supervisor/ Regional	• Can only view the personal details and employment contracts, but is
manager	not able to edit them
	<ul> <li>Has the opportunity to report illness, pregnancy, and recovery</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Has access to the (absence) dossiers for which he/she is responsible</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Receives signal emails regarding added notes and documents</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Distinction: the regional manager does not receive signal emails</li> </ul>
Absence and	<ul> <li>Can only communicate illness and recovery</li> </ul>

Absence and	
recovery notifier	
	<ul> <li>Has no access to employee details and absenteeism records</li> </ul>



#### Under user details, 3 tick boxes can be found:

- 1. Active: this will make the account active
- 2. System access: in combination with the checkmark behind Active, the user will receive the link to log in
- **3. U2F**: this option is used only when the organisation utilises a U2F-Token. This will not be applicable for many.

# 6.3 AUTHORISATION STRUCTURE

On the right hand side of the dark bar, the option 'Fully authorised' can be found. When this is ticked in an account, the user will be authorised for the entire organisation. By clicking on the names of the departments in the authorisation structure, one will go deeper inside the structure. Once you have identified the desired region/department, you click on the arrow behind the department.

prization structure				ſ	
Quick authorisation	٥	Quick authorisation		Û	
Restaurant Putter	~	📕 Management		~	
		Authorized			
		Fully authorized			
		Excluded from authorization			
		Authorization on behalf of signa	ala		
		Authorization on behalf of viewi	ing dossiers		

#### You can authorise the account by clicking on the desired option below:

Authorized

The user is authorised only with regard to the employees of the relevant region/ department

Fully authorized

The user is authorised for all underlying regions / departments

Excluded from authorization

The user will be excluded from all underlying regions / departments / employees

Authorization on behalf of signals

The user has **no access** to the authorised regions / departments, but **does receive signals** Authorization on behalf of viewing dossiers

The user does have access to the authorised regions / departments, but will not receive signals

Subsequently, you click on '**save**' at the bottom. The login link will be sent on the day stated at Start date.

#### There are several other buttons available:

- **Delete:** This is to delete the entire account. It cannot be retrieved afterwards.
- **Reset google authenticator:** Using this, you will reset the account and upon the next login, the user will find the QR code in the screen. (this is not applicable in case of a U2F token)
- **Resend invitation email:** This will ensure that the link is being sent again.
- Reset password: This will submit a link to the user to reset his/her account.

O Delete	G Reset google authenticator	Resend invitation email	A Reset password	🖺 Save	Cancel
7. THE	REPORTING PORTAL				

The absence registration and communication system is compiled of several portals. For you, the employer and reporting portal was made available. In this manual you can learn how to navigate to the reporting portal and how to generate and convert reporting to a different file (format).



# 7.1 NAVIGATING TO THE REPORTING CHANNEL

Once you are logged in, you will receive an overview of the portals. The portal will be opened after you click on the reporting portal tile.

If you are working in the employer portal and want to navigate to the reporting portal, this can be done via the portal button in the top right.



### 7.2 REPORT SELECTION

The reporting portal provides the opportunity to print several different reports. To do this, click on 'select a report' to choose from the different reports.

port:	
Select a report	•
ieneral	-
futations	
tatistics	
bsence for income insurer	
bsence analysis	
bsence analysis detailed	

At start and end date, you enter the period for which you wish to receive a report. Thus you will only find the absence details regarding the selected period.

#### Important: also employees will appear who are partially absent during the period you selected.

### 7.3 EMPLOYER SELECTION

Under '*Employer selection*' you can find your company and accompanying departments. It is important to be aware whether you want to print a report regarding your entire company or just for some business units. If you wish to print a report regarding some of the business units, then search the desired business unit and only tick the box for the relevant department(s).

Emplo	yer selection:											
Stru	cture											
	Select all	<	>	<b>`</b>	Select all	<	>	*	Select all	<	>	-
	Restaurant Putter				Management				RPA - Bediening			
					Restaurant Putter Amsterdam				RPA - Keuken			
					Restaurant Putter Rotterdam			_				
					🛊 Hendriksen, B.							
					🛊 Klaas, M							
				~				~				
4												

In the image above, only a report regarding the 'operation' department is printed. In some reporting options it is also possible to select by employees.



# 7.4 FILTERS

Under Employer selection, you have the opportunity to set filters. You can set a filter for each report. The filter options differ per report.

Gender: Age: From	Until
Safety net:	x *
File types:	x * Utsluter:
Operator: Greater than or equal to * *	Aantai:

After everything has been filled in, you click the button in the top right:

### 7.5 SAVING FILTERS

If you print similar reports on a regular basis, you can save the filters used for this report.

When you have printed the report, you click on the button '*Options*' and subsequently on '*Save filters*'.

After clicking on '*Save filters*', the screen below will appear:

Options	Run 🖪	
		😝 Print
		Image: Barbara Bar
		🖾 Generate PDF
		Archive report
		▼ Save filters

Run 🖪



# PARA**DIGMA** GROEP



### 7.6 STATISTICS REPORT

Printing a statistics report will provide you with the formula that the calculation was made with. To make the formula insightful, hover the cursor of your mouse over the absence percentage.

Basisgegevens		
4,03 %	6 Ziekteverzuimpercentage	0,33 %
	ZIEKTEVERZUIMPERCENTAGE	
Verzuimverdeling	Periode van 01-02-2020 tot 01-03-2020 op basis van kalenderdagen Berekening: (78,10 verzuimdagen / 1940,10 beschikt	pare dagen) * 100

### 7.7 PRINTING - ARCHIVING

As soon as the report has been generated, you can click on the button 'options' to have the report converted to an XLS or PDF file or to have it printed.

Opties	Uitvoeren 🖪	🖨 Afdrukken
		E Genereer XLS
		🕒 Genereer PDF
	×	Rapport archiveren
		▼ Filters opslaan



It is also possible to archive the report by clicking on '*Rapport archiveren*'. You can find the report under '*Gearchiveerde rapporten*'.

🖽 Kles rapport 🄇 🛗 🖪 💷 Gegenereerd rappo	rt Gearchiveerde rapporten 📿 Reset
--	------------------------------------

# 8. QUESTIONS OR MORE INFORMATION?

Do you have any more questions after reading this manual? Then feel free to contact **servicedesk@dearbodienst.nl**. Our employees will be happy to serve you.